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Addendum # 1, dated 11/16/23 
Coventry BOE Student Transportation Services RFP  
Bid Due Date: 12/1/23 
Questions/Document Requested: 
 
Article 1, page 2, indicates the term of the contract is 3 years, with the option for the Board to extend 
for 2 additional years, but the pricing page only asks for rates for the base 3 year term. How will the 
option years be priced? 
 
Response: The contract term is for three years.  If the Board decides to consider a contract extension, 
prices will be negotiated between the chosen contractor and the Board. 
 
Article 4.1.8 (b), page 8, refers to the proof of insurability to be provided by the Proposer, and states 
that said proof could be either a ‘certificate of insurance’ or a ‘letter from the insurance company (not 
agent).’ However, article 4.2.5, page 14, indicates that the Proposer ‘must include a letter from an 
insurance broker.’ Article 8.5, page 31, states ‘binders evidencing coverage’ shall be provided annually, 
while article 8.6 refers to certificates again. These items seem contradictory – the industry norm is to 
provide a certificate of insurance showing the appropriate coverages and indemnification language. 
Please consider adjusting the language in these sections to only require annual certificates as the 
proposal requirement. 
 
Response: Delete Section 4.2.5.  Article 8.5 is within the Form of Contract with which the contract 
awardee is expected to comply.  It requires different evidence of proof of insurance at the time of 
contract versus at the time of proposal submission. 
 
Article 4.1.9, 4th paragraph on page 9, refers to current employees, and recommends they be 
considered for employment, should they meet the Contractor’s employment requirements. However, 
article 10.26, page 39, states that the Contractor ‘will’ offer employment to current employees, but 
leaves out the language about them meeting the Contractor’s employment requirements. Please add 
that language to article 10.26 so as to be consistent with the earlier item. 
 
Response:  The suggestion for the Form of Contract (10.26) will be considered at the time of contract 
negotiations, if necessary. 
 
Article 4.2.2 (f), page 12, states that the Contractors fleet will have an average age not to exceed 8 
years at any time during the contract. The use of ‘average age’ implies that older vehicles could be 
used, as long as the fleet contains enough younger vehicles to meet the average. However, article 11.1 
(b), page 39 states that no vehicles shall exceed 7 years of age. Using an average fleet age instead of a 
maximum vehicle age provides the Contractor with more flexibility and can reduce the proposal rates. 
Please clarify which age measurement the Board wants. 
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Response:  The vehicles in Contractor’s fleet will not exceed 7 years of age. 
 
Article 4.2.2 (g), page 13, requests a list of vehicle inspection violations – is this just for the most recent 
CT inspection? 
 
Response: Please submit vehicle inspections for the last year. 
 
Article 5.1.3, page 16, displays a chart showing the required fleet make-up, with 17 type I vehicles. 
However, 5.2.1, page 17, indicates that 17 type II vehicles will be required. Please clarify. 
 
Response: Revise 5.2.1 to seventeen (17) Type I Vehicles. 
 
Article 6.2, page 19, refers to a GPS system, and the 1st sentence states that the cost will be included in 
the daily rate. However, the 3rd sentence states that the proposer shall provide an annual cost per bus 
for such a feature. Please clarify which pricing methodology the Board prefers, and if it is the latter, 
please provide a place on the pricing page for such a rate. 
 
Response: Delete “On the Form of Proposal, the Proposer shall provide the annual cost per bus for the 
installation and operation of this feature.” 
 
Article 6.4, page 19, refers to computer routing software – and states it will be provided to the Board 
with a license for ‘full use’ but then refers to ‘read only’ use. Please clarify which level of access the 
Board wants – the industry norm is for a district to be limited to ‘read only’ unless the district does 
their own routing. 
 
Response: Read only is acceptable. 
 
Article 1, page 23, refers to the base contract term ending with the 2025-2027 school year, which 
should read the 2026-2027 school year. Also, the final sentence is incomplete – ‘In the event of a 
conflict between the Invitation for Bids…’ and refers to a bid, while this document is an RFP. Please 
complete and clarify. 
 
Response: Revise Article 1, first sentence as follows: “The term of the Contract shall be for a 
three (3) year period beginning July 1, 2024 and ending with the 2026-2027 school year (not 
later than June 30, 2027).” Delate last sentence of Article 1 and replace with the following: In the 
event of a conflict between the RFP and the contract, the contract will take precedence”  

 
Article 3.1, 3rd paragraph on page 24, states that the ‘cost of fuel … will be supplied by the Board’ and 
stored in tanks provided by the Contractor. Article 12.5.1, page 42, states that the Board will furnish ‘all 
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fuel necessary’ which seems to contradict the prior statement referring to the cost of fuel. If the Board 
will provide fuel, as opposed to paying for fuel purchased by the contractor, please clarify that wording  
in article 3.1. We also note that article 11.7, page 42, states the Board will only provide diesel fuel, not 
gasoline, which is contradicted by article 5.1.2, page 16, which states gasoline fuel is to be provided by 
the Board. Please clarify. 
 
Response: The BOE purchases diesel fuel and it is delivered to the Bus yard to a tank owned by the 
contractor. 

 
Article 3.3, page 24, requires the Contractor to provide routes to the Board by August 18th annually, 
while article 15.2, page 43, requires routes and schedules to be provided by July 15th. Please clarify. 
 
Response: Routes are to be provided to the Board by July 15th of the contract year. 
 
Article 4.3.10, page 26, refers to bus drivers, aides, and others, while article 10.3, page 33, states the 
Board reserves the right to directly employ monitors, aides, or attendants. Please indicate how many 
Contractors employed aides and Board employed aides/monitors are currently used? 
 
Response:  At the present time, no aides/monitors are employed by either the contractor or the BOE. 
 
Article 5.5, page 28, mentions ‘appropriation by the Towns’ – please clarify/correct the use of the 
plural, as Coventry is only one town. 
 
Response:  There is only one town. 
 
Article 6 title, page 28 – the use of the word ‘Each’ implies that more than one district is involved. 
Please clarify.  
 
Response: Only one district is involved. 
 
Articles 10.3, page 33, and 10.19, page 38, refer to the Board and/or the Superintendent’s right to 
remove from service, reject, or replace any driver. Please consider adding the following language as 
clarification: 
 

“When requesting dismissal of any employee, the Board/Superintendent will 
state the reason(s) in writing, and such reason(s) will not violate any state or 
federal employment guidelines.”  
 

Response: The suggestion to the Form of Contract will be considered at the time of contract 
negotiations, if necessary. 
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Article 10.4, page 34, first uses the term ‘CPS’ which then appears throughout the rest of the 
document, but ‘CPS’ is not included in the list of definitions on pages 4-5. Please clarify. 
 
Response:  CPS is defined in Article 1 first paragraph of the Form of Contract. 
 
Article 10.7, page 35, refers to specialized training to be provided by the Board. As driver wages will be 
paid by the Contractor, please estimate the number of annual hours for such training. 
 
Response:   In recent years, we have not provided any specialized training.  
 
Article 10.19, page 38, 3rd sentence is incomplete. ‘If replaced, the driver shall not thereafter be…’ 
Please complete this sentence. 
 
Response: Add the word “reinstated” to the end of the third sentence. 
 
Article 11.1 (d), page 40, refers to a Nextel direct-connect phone. Nextel has long since ceased to exist. 
Please clarify what the acceptable communication device would be. 
 
Response:  Delete “direct-connect” AND (i.e. Nextel or equivalent) 
 
Article 11.1 (e), page 40, refers to special ed students – how many of the 17 listed route vehicles are 
carrying special ed students? 
 
Response:  Special Education students may be on any and every bus run. 
 
Article 11.6, page 41, provides that the Town has the right to use the Contractors vehicles in case of an 
emergency. Please describe the terms that would apply to such a Town use, especially with regards to 
payment, responsibility for damage, and indemnification. 
 
Response:   Although rare, an example would be emergency evacuations due to natural disasters. The 
Board anticipates that the costs for such services, if needed, would be negotiated. Responsibility for 
damages and/or indemnification will be consistent with the contract. 
 
Article 21, page 50, refers to non-performance damages – please indicate the annual total of liquidated 
damages charged to M & J Bus for the 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years. 
 
Response:  Liquidated damages have not been assessed in either year.   
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Does M & J have a full complement of assigned route drivers? And a fully staffed bench 
with 10% spare drivers?  
 
Response:  NO 
 
DOCUMENTS REQUESTED    
A copy of the current contract with M & J- See attached.  
Copies of invoices from May, September and October of 2023 - See attached. 
 
A copy of M & J’s current fleet list – See attached. 
 
ROUTING QUESTIONS 

Bus #4 drops at the HS at 7:25 but starts that run at Windham Tech – please provide times for 
that tech school run, from the Bus Terminal   

Response: Bus #4- Meets the other buses (Cheney, Win Tech and EO) at CHS at approx. 6:25 
AM.  They all switch students to their appropriate buses to each school.  Bus 4 takes all of the 
Win Tech Students to Win Tech, then completes a CHS/CNH Route and a GHR/CGS Route. 

None of the Vo-Ag routes have info for their PM runs – please provide. 

Response:  For the Vo-Ag routes in the PM- There is 1 Bus that goes to each of those schools for 
their dismissal- Bus 7 goes to Win Tech, Bus 17 goes to EO Smith, Bus 18 goes to Cheney Tech 
and they pick up all Coventry Students at those schools.  Then Bus 7 and 17 meet the other CHS 
Buses for dismissal and disperse their students to their appropriate CHS Buses for the transport 
home.  As well as complete CHS/CNH Routes themselves along with Elementary Routes. 

 
Neither bus 16 nor 18 seem to have afternoon HS runs – please confirm that this is the 
case. 
 
Response:   Bus 16 and 18 PM- Bus 18 is the afternoon Bus that picks up all Coventry 
Students at Cheney, then meets up with Bus 16 and transfers some of the students, 
they both complete the routes to bring the students home and then both complete 
Elementary Routes. 

 
 
 
 





































































































































Coventry Fleet List 
ALL BUSES ARE BLUEBIRD BUSES 

1514 - 2015 - 77 PASS      

1515 - 2015 - 77 PASS 

1519 - 2015 - 77 PASS  

1612 - 2016- 77 PASS 

1614 - 2016 -71 PASS  

1616 - 2016 - 77 PASS 

1633 - 2016 - 47 PASS  

1741 - 2017 - 77 PASS  

1742 - 2017 - 77 PASS 

1761 - 2017 - 77 PASS 

1762 - 2017 - 77 PASS 

1763 - 2017 - 77 PASS  

1764 - 2017 - 77 PASS 

1765 - 2017- 77 PASS 

1829 - 2018 - 77 PASS  

1830 - 2018 - 77 PASS 

2027 - 2020 - 71 PASS  

2110 - 2021 - 77 PASS 

2127 - 2021 - 71 PASS 

2128 – 2021 - 71 PASS 
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